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Monday, May 24, 1971 26. 

CERNING PROPERTY LIENS IN. FAVOR OF MUNICIPALITIES. 

MR. AJELLO: (118th). 

Mr. Speaker, I move t h a t t h i s item be Passed, temporari l 

THE SPEAKER: 

So ordered. 

THE CLERK: 
C a l . 1043,- Bub. f o r H.B. 5409.. AN ACT CONCERNING THE 

JURISDICTION OF MUNICIPAL FAIR RENT COMMISSIONS OVER MOBILE 

HOMES AND MOBILE HOME PARKS. 

THE SPEAKER: 

The Chair r e c o g n i z e s the gentleman from the 1 1 1 t h . 

MR. MORRIS: (111th): 

Mr. Speaker, I move acceptance of the Committee's 
favorable report and passage of the bill. 
THE SPEAKER: 

Question i s on acceptance and passage. W i l l you remark. 

MR. MORRIS: 
The Clerk has an amendment. 

THE CLERK: 
House Amendment Schedule A, o f f e r e d by. Mr. C o s t e l i o of 

the 72nd. In l ine. 3, b e f o r e the word "any" i n s e r t the f o l l o w i n g -

" a ) . In l i n e 8, a f t e r the word "accommodations, i n s e r t the '. 

f o l l o w i n g : " , Except those accommodations rented on a seasonal 

b a s i s , 1 1 In l i n e 15 , a f t e r the per iod f o l l o w i n g the word "oaths." 

i n s e r t the f o l l o w i n g : "(b) For purposes of subsect ion ( a ) , 
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Seasonal b a s i s means housing accommodations rented f o r a per iod 

or p e r i o d s aggregat ing not more than one hundred twenty days in 

any one calendar y e a r . " 

THE SPEAKER: 
Question i s on adoption of House Amendment Schedule "A". 

W i l l you remark. 

MR. MORRIS: (111th) 

Mr. Speaker, I so move. I y i e l d to Mr. C o s t e l l o . 

THE SPEAKER: 
The Chair r e c o g n i z e s the gentleman from the 72nd, 

MR. COSTELLO: (72nd) 

This amendment i s f i l e d i n the hopes t h a t the towns 

i n my d i s t r i c t and many towns in many communities which have 

accommodations which are rented on a seasonal b a s i s , w i l l con-

s i d e r the c r e a t i o n of f a i r rent commissions. During my t r a v e l s 

in my d i s t r i c t I f i n d that we have some very l a r g e mobile home 

parks i n the. d i s t r i c t . The people t h a t l i v e in these mobile 

home parks are in most i n s t a n c e s r e t i r e d people . They lave 

very l i m i t e d f i x e d incomes. Within the past f i v e y e a r s , t h e i r 

r e n t a l s have doubled in some of these mobilehome parks and they 

are q u i t e concerned about t h e i r a b i l i t y to remain t h e r e . In 

one town they attempted to have a town meeting adopt a f a i r 

r e n t commission. At the l a s t moment, people in the community 

who own ed cottages which were rented on a seasonal b a s i s , turned 

out i n f o r c e opposing the c r e a t i o n of a f a i r r e n t commission 

because of the f e a r t h a t such commission would begin t o meddle 
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in the rentals for seasonal cottages. These of course are on 
a catch as catch can basis, some years the rents are quite 
high depending on the demand. It seems to me, however, that 
people who are renting summer cottages are not the people we 
are trying to pujtect by the Fair Rent Commission law and if we 
can encourage communities to adopt fair rent commissions by 
excluding seasonal rental-basis rents from the purview of the 
law then we can help our senior citizen friends who are the 
residents of the places and at present sometimes the victims;^ 
of the mobilehome parks. Another problem that developes is that 
in many communities and particularly resort communities, the 
mobile home parks have become virtual monopolys because after 
the establishment of one or two large mobile home parks, the 
local zoning is often changed to prevent additional parks from 
being established which this creates a monopoly in spite of 
the desire on the part of developers of these mobile home parks 
not to be a monopoly and the only way, however, that this 
monopoly can be controlled, as I see it, is through the fair 
rent commissions. I think this amendment will make a good bill 
better and I urge its adoption. 
THE SPEAKER: 

Further remarks on the amendment. Rep. Morris, speaking 
on the amendment. 
MR. MORRIS: (111th) 

House Amendment Schedule "A" is acceptable to this 
side. It clearly excludes those mobile homes on a seasonal 
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b a s i s and puts under the a c t those mobile homes t h a t are used 

year round and may be f o r e v e r i n some p a r t i c u l a r c a s e s . 

THE SPEAKER: 

Further remarks on Amendment Schedule "A". I f n o t , 

a l l those i n f a v o r w i l l i n d i c a t e by saying "AYe". Opposed. 

The AMENDMENT IS ADOPTED. I t i s ru led t e c h n i c a l . The g e n t l e -

man from the 1 1 1 t h . 

MR. MORRIS: (111th) 

Mr. Speaker, I move t h a t Sub. H.B. 5409, as amended 

by House Amendment Schedule "A" be passed. 

THE SPEAKER: 

Further remarks on the b i l l as amended. I f n o t , a l l 

those in favor i n d i c a t e by saying AYE. Opposed. THE BILL IS. 

PASSED. 

roc 

THE CLERK: 

Cal . 104.4, Sub. for H.B. 6197. AN ACT CONCERNING 

TECHNICAL AND PROCEDURAL CHANGES IN .CONNECTION WITH THE LICENSING 

OF ARCHITECTS. 

MR. HANNON: (16th) 

Mr. Speaker, may t h i s i tem be Passed, Temporari ly . 

THE SPEAKER: 

So ordered. 

THE CLERK: 

Page 7, C a l . 1045, Sub, f o r H.B. 6969. .. AN ACT CONCERN-

ING THE WAIVER OF CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS K)R BILINGUAL TEACHEttS 
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June 1, 1971 41. 
THE CLERKs 

Will you turn to page 11, The fourth item, Cal. 963. File 
1358,1149. Favorable substitute report joint standing committee 
on Human Rights and Opportunities Substitute H.B. 5^09 The 
Jurisdiction of Municipal Fair Rent Commissions Over Mobile Homes 
and Mobile Home Parks, As amended by House Amendment Sch. A. 
THE CHAIRs 

Senator Smith. 
SENATOR SMITHs 

Mr. President, I move acceptance of the joint committee's 
favorable report and passage of the bill in concurrence with the 
House. 
THE CHAIRs 

Will you remark? 
SENATOR SMITHs 

Mr. President, the House Amendment Sch. A and B. Sch. A 
has simply added beginning on line 8, beginning after the comma 
after accommodations except those accommodations rented on a 
seasonal basis within this jurisdiction which term shall include 
mobile homes and mobile home parks. What this means Mr, President 
is that mobile parks will be brought under the present fair rent 
provisions of our General Statutes, excluding those which are 
rented on a seasonal basis. And as far as the other sections of 
the bill goes I believe thats the, I'm sorry the second House 
Amendment Sch. B. is for again clarifies on beginning of line 16 
for the purposes of some sections the seasonal basis means housing 
accommodations rented for a period or periods aggrigating not 
more than 120 days in any one calendar year. On the first one 
it merely says seasonal basis. And the second one it spells out 
exactly the number of days in which they are talking about, I 
move for passage of the bill. 
THE CHAIRs 

The question is on passage of the bill. Will you remark 
further? If not all those in favor of passage of the bill 



JOINT 
STANDING 

COMMITTEE 
HEARINGS 

HUMAN RIGHTS 
AND 

OPPORTUNITIES 

PART 1 
1-350 

1971 
INDEX 



ke / 
/ 
/ 

/ 

HUMAN EIGHTS AND OPPORTUNITIES 
WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24>1971 

Presiding Chairman! Wilber Smith 
Committee 
Members Present: Representatives: Pearson* Simons*Frazier> 

Morgan* Coatsworth* Matthews* Connolly 
Chairman Smith: Ladies and gentlemen may I have your atten-

tion please. I introduce myself* I am Senator Smith 
from 2nd District* the Senate chairman of the Com-
mittee on Human Rights and Opportunities and I would 
like to introduce Representative Frazier of the 
10th District who is the House chairman of the Com-
mittee on Human Rights and Opportunities. Those who 
would like to speak this evening on Bills are asked 
to sign the speakers' list which is right up front 
here with the Committee secretary. 

We have a list and its not in any particular oatder 
this evening you just may speak on any Bill which 
is before the Committee. 

IB-5409 (Rep. Dice) AW ACT CONCERNING THE JURISDICTION OP 
MUNICIPAL PAIR RENT COMMISSIONS OYER MOBILE HOMES 
AND MOBILE HOME PARKS. 

iep. Dice* 83rd District: There is a similar bill that was 
introduced by Senator Hammer of which it's my under-
standing may be before another committee and if so* 
I believe the bills are so similar you may want to 
ask that bill be transferred to your committee since 
you will have one hearing on the matter. 
I would like to speak in favor of this bill by in-
dicating first of all that the bill is designed to 
bring mobile homes and mobile home parks within the 
perview of the Pair Rent Commission Act which was 
passed in 1969. At the present time* that Act ap-
plies to property and is the legal opinion of many 
attorneys and it is my understanding that although 
it has not been tried in court that this existing 
legislation does not include mobile homes or mobile 
home parks. 
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HUMAN RIGHTS AND OPPORTUNITIES 
WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24* 1971 
Mr. Dice: The first occasion I had to meet with this problem 

was in the beginning of a campaign - this may mean 
the campaigns do have some benefit. I visited 114 
mobile homes in Prospect* Connecticut and during that 
visit and before* I realize that there is a serious 
problem involved with mobile homes and mobile home 
parks and it has developed historically somewhat in 
this manner:- Towns have practically zoned out mobile 
homes; consequently any mobile heme park that new. exist 
in this state is of non-conformant use* meaning that* 
if you purchase a mobile home you have to go to the 
existing mobile home park; consequently* there is a 
restricted and limited supply of space for the occupa-
tion of mobile homes in a park. On the other hand* 
there is a great demand for such space and for such 
parks. 

I will refer to and subsequently put into evidence 
an article from the Waterbury American of Monday* 
December 21* 1970 which indicates that more than a 
third of the new family homes being sold in the 
United States today are mobile homes. In the under 
25*000 price bracket* the proportion is more than 
two thirds. In the under 15* 000 range the percentage 
is 95%. Today* more than five million Americans live 
in more than two million mobile homes* more than one 
thousand major manufacturers are now in the field. 
This year alone an estimated 418*000 mobile homes will 
have been shipped by mobile home manufacturers versus 
the I960's of 104*000. By 1975 the number will have 
more than doubled to nearly a million* consequently 
you can see that in Connecticut we have a limited 
supply of land and space available for mobile homes 
but there continues to be a great demand for these 
mobile homes. 
In my experience in visiting the homes* and the article 
will also relate to that* the people who occupy these 
facilities are primarily over sixty year old retirees* 
people on limited or fixed income and newly married 
individuals. Consequently* with the supply of the space 
available* limited and the demand great* there is an 
opportunity for abuse of the people who occupy these 
homes by the operators. 
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HUMAN RIGHTS AND OPPORTUNITIES 
WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24. 1971 
Mr. Dice: Most critical in setting the situation of abuse 

in a further light is the fact that most of the 
mobile home parks in Connecticut do have a long 
term lease. Their lease is a month to month» and I 
will introduce into evidence a lease to the leasers 
and other files of the Commission on Real Estate in 
the state of Connecticut to indicate as such. 
As you can see, this makes for a set up of even further 
abuse when the mobile home park can evict any individual 
who gives him any kind of problem without provocation 
because they have no more than a month to month lease. 
In drafting this particular bill, and others that are 
in the legislative pipeline, I conferred with 
James Gurry the Director of Real Estate Commission 
in the state, he has given me and I will submit into 
evidence at least two files that contain a number 
of letters from individuals who have written to 
Governor Demsey and other state officials explaining 
the problems they have had. 
In the summarized zone, I am sure there are other 
people that will speak here tonight indicating their 
problem, but to summarize some of them that were 
brought to my attention I might indicate some as fol-
lows; some I believe you can see are really unscrupu-
lous. In some occasions the water has been off from 
three to five days, the sewers are inadequate and at 
times flow on top of the ground, electricity has been 
off for periods of time, electricity has been re-
charged to individuals meaning that the electricity-
has been paid by the park itself and then recharged 
at exsorbent rate to the individuals who operate the 
mobile home park. Also a mobile home will move into 
a space and find that the space that they originally 
thought they leased was reduced. At times I under-
stand that they are so close together that they are 
almost wall to wall and you can hear what goes on 
in the other home without any difficulty at all times 
of the day or night. 



HUMAN RIGHTS AND OPPORTUNITIES 
WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24, 1971 
Mr. Dice: Mr. Sabo who is the Chief Executive Officer of 

Prospect is here and will testify as to the problems 
the town has had even in enforcing its own regulations 
against the particular mobile home park in that town. 
Other abuses have been the upkeep of the roads, but 
I think one of the most flagrant ones is the rent 
situation. People are induced into these homes rather 
into these parks also to buy the homes and in most 
occasions the mobile home park also supplies and sells 
mobile homes, and this leads to another abuse that 
I will talk about in just a minute. 
Once the mobile home has been sold and the people 
have been permitted to go into the park they find 
that the base rent they talked about, would although 
it would have been nominal, was not the whole story 
and there were rent increases and hidden conditions 
for example, and again I am sure others will speak 
about this, but there were additional charges for 
each pet you had or each boat you had, each car you 
had, each child you had, each washer, each dryer and 
in most cases, these additional rents were not in 
proportion and had no relation to the use that was 
made of the facilities by the individuals. 

And now I would like to speak also as to the abuse 
in respect to the purchase. Often time the people 
that come into these parks are either (l) indicated 
or told that they cannot come into the park unless 
they buy a mobile from the park itself which is also 
the sales agent for mobile homes. So consequently 
you cannot get into the park without buying a home 
from them or (2) paying the profit as an entry fee 
on the sale of a mobile home even though they don't 
sell it. But once someone makes a deposit, buys a 
home and goes into these mobile home parks then if 
they do not like what happens in there such as the 
water that was indicated, increases in rent, then 
they are told if you don't like it you can get out. 
The question is where do they go? Generally there 
is no other place in the state because of the non-
conformant use that I indicated before for these 
people to go with their mobile homes. 
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WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24,1971 

Mr. Dice: As a reault another abuse has developed and that 
is in effect endeavoring to have the people leave 
so that they default in the payments of their 
mobile homes and this in turn benefits the park 
owners because they can pick up the homes themselves 
and resell them. 
I have letters from attorneys and other exhibits 
that will be introduced in the evidence as there 
have been lawsuits started by a mobile home associa-
tion and other individuals and the processes of the 
lawsuits themselves have not been satisfactory so 
far as to help with this situation and consequently 
these are the reasons for this bill is to take and 
put the mobile homes and parks under the Fair Rent 
Commission Act and be cause of the wording of that 
Act at the present time, it is discrimmatory against 
these of our citizens - the citizens who are now 
trying to support themselves, they are not going to 
public welfare, they are not going to state welfare 
or federal welfare, they are endeavoring to support 
themselves in mobile homes with the income that they 
do have and it is my belief that they are being 
discrimminated against under the Fair Rent Commission 
Act at the present time and it is my feeling that 
these citizens should be treated as equal citizens 
and this bill should be passed. Thank you very much. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you. Do we have any more legislators in 
audience who would like to speak now? If not, then 
I'd like to call on Mr. George A. Sabo Jr. 

Mr. George A. Sabo Jr. Chief Administrator for the town of 
Prospect: I rise in support of Rep. Dice Bill. I 
will try to cover a few points that Mr. Dice hasn't. 
I think he has done a very thorough job. 
I have left on your desk a file there, if you might 
you can follow along with the reasons why I support 
this legislation. 
My part in this goes back to 1967 and we have here 
on the first page of the letter from the Mobile Cor-
poration stating that they are in clear cut violation 
and therefore they will remove this violation. They 
had removed it in '68 - '69 and then they decided that 
due to the fact that there was a discrepancy they 
thought in the ordinances they have moved these trailers 
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Mr, George Sabo Jr.: We have consequently sworn out warrants 
for their arrest and this warrant is dated December 18, 
1969. We are still waiting to go to court on this. 

We have arrested them on prior accounts, rather on 
other accounts prior to this one and to go before the 
judge took us six to eight months. We had 23 counts 
of the State Health Code filed against them, we wound 
up with one count of stagnant water and that was ap-
pealed and it's still in appeal. 

The reason that I ask for this is that the towns, al-
though we have ordinances, the key to it is tn&t they 
have to be a criminal conviction, and in order to get 
this conviction of court - 'competent jurisdiction1 
is what it says actually, and in order to get this 
conviction we have to go to a Prosecutor, and of course 
with 240 cases today in the courts, they do not pay 
much attention to a Zoning Violation. 

But in the meantime, we have 114 people who are actually 
living under sub-human conditions in some of these 

' r t ,:instances, I'll cite this other one from the electrical 
inspector - it took a year in order to get some of the 
electrical work done in the park and we had somewheres 
in the neighborhood of 80 violations- Now these viola-
tions were criminal. They could pull the fuses on 
these boxes and go back into the trailer and you'd 
still get 220 across the line. They were jumping fuses 
and everything else in these trailers. 

There were open wires the children were playing next 
to that could kill them. We've gone to the State Health 
Department and you'll see from Mr. Woodhall Chief Sani-
tarian - in 1968 he wrote them and sent inspectors down 

. rtstill haven't got any answers. They still not in com-
plianse with the Health Code; with the water situation 
they are frozen in the ground - they won't go in and 
fix them. These water lines according to certain 
State Codes have to be run at a certain distance from 
the sewer lines. These water lines actually run under 
the sewer lines. These sewer lines are open. 
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Mr, George Sabo Jr.; They are not cast iron according to the 
latest State Code, and they are running above the ground. 

We have sworn statements from these people. When they 
sell them the trailer, they promise to move them in 
and regardless of trailer space and regardless of the 
people, they promise them a certain date and these 
people of course, young couples, newly married, leave 
their rents hoping to move into a trailer and of course, 
there is no room for them here so they arbitrarily 
stick a trailer any place they want to and call it a 
traveler's space. 

Our latest case we are going to court with is on that 
specific trailer space violation, so you can see that 
one ended December 1968, we are still waiting to go to 
court. 

Now, town officials are not out to jurt these people, 
but if you get a violation and they spend a year in 
this trailer, how do you remove them after the court 
says they are in violation? 

The Fire Marshal has gone down on Trailer Space Vio-
lations. This one particular space where they arbitra-
rily put a trailer in the driveway, we red tagged the 
area and they disregarded the red tag and moved the 
trailer in. We had to go to court and on that case, 
we didn't go to court, time material went to court, 
and of course, they lost it. 

But the point here is time. We have to go to a Cir-
cuit Court that we can get an appearance on and in the 
meantime, these people are suffering all the time. 

There are 23 counts of violations. We have moving 
pictures, we have colored slides of the affluent 
running down the streets and we come to the point where 
they say is stagnant water. 
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HUMAN RIGHTS AND OPPORTUNITIES 

WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24, 1971 

Mr. George Sabo Jr.: So my position and the town's position is 
the fact that unless there is something done along the 
line of where the town can in effect hold these unscru-
pulous management in violation, the towns are going to 
continue to be very strict as fair as allowing trailer 
parks, and we might as well put it as what it is, they 
are mobile homes now, but they are under trailer park 
regulations. The concept is still as far as I.aw n.s 
concerned, as far as administration is concerned, we 
are still thinking of them as trailer parks. 

There is no longer in my line mobile homes. A person 
buys this, he can't move this trailer - it is moved 
in for him, it is put on a foundation and he's stuck 
with it. He can't arbitrarily pick that trailer up 
or move it out, so the concept of it being a mobile 
home according to state statute, which is antiquated 
as far as I am concerned, is wrong too. 

I believe there is a great need for mobile homes in 
the retirement and young married couple and moderate 
income field, but if we don't do something that will 
help the mobile homes and the people that want to 
buy them and live in them, we are going to restrict 
ourselves to a point where they son't be allowed in 
any town. 

I feel that the mobile home builders should come in 
on this and in effect sell them only to decent mana-
gers, for when you can get people that wil defy you 
and defy the law and defy the people on the Zoning 
Board - eight years ago I had a complaint and went 
down to them and the manager of the park told them 
at that time that if he didn't shut his mouth, and 
this is in front of the Zoning B ard, that he would 
be thrown out the next week. 

When I was elected as Chief Administrator, I couldn't 
get a conversation down in a trailer park. I couldn't 
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WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24, 1971 

Mr. George Sabo Jr.: get a conversation down in a trailer 
park. I couldn't get a name down there. I refused 
to accept the name in the first place and no one 
would say who they were and what the violation was 
because for the simple reason that if they got word 
of it, they would be evicted. 

A young person that buys a trailer and it is a beauti-
ful piece of equipment, and until he finds out that 
he can't move and that there is no place in the state 
to move and that unless he goes into one of these 
trailer parks, he is not going to say anything. 

Also the retiring people, they have a 'Retirement 
Area' down there, they absolutely refuse to speak to 
the town officials. They don't want to get involved 
for the simple reason that they can be evicted, and. 
they have no place to go. 

So I strongly urge that this committee report favorably 
on Rep. Dice's Bill and also when it comes out I hope 
it is written so that we don't have to go to the 
Attorney General to get a ruling on it. I hope that 
it is in clear text so that everybody can understand 
it. Thank you. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you very much. Mr. Robert Burns. 

Mr. Robert Burns, 351 High Street, East Hartfordr I would 
like to read or quote from a report done in 1966 
just one paragraph of some testamonies that I gave 
prior to giving anything else. 

Chairman Smith: Excuse me sir, on which Bill are you 
speaking? 

Mr. Robert Burns: This is in regard to the Mobile Home 
Rent Commission Bill. 
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WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24, 1 

Chairman Smith: Are you for or against the Bill? 

Mr. Robert Burns: I'm kinda half way in between I'am afraid 
sir. 

Chairman Smith: Go right ahead. 

Mr. Robert Burns: If I may quote from this report, and I raid 
to Study Committee of the Public Works Department, there 
are three things that I am here for. 

The first is to protect the rights of a mobile home to 
be used in the State of Connecticut as housing. 

Second, to protect my right when my children are gone 
so I can retire in a mobile home. 

Third, is to protect everybody else's right to do the 
same, whether you like a mobile home today or not. 

I will now identify myself - I am Legislative Chairman 
of the New England Mobile Home Association. I am its 
Standards Chairman, I am currently Treasurer, I am 
past Vice Chairman of the Connecticut Mobile Homes 
Study Commissions serving in 1961-4. I have spent 
three and a half years as a Representative from East 
Hartford to the Capitol Regent Planning Agency. 

I would like to state first of all that Rep. Dice if 
he only came across this situation at the start of 
his campaign certainly did his homework, but he did his 
homework in Prospect. The first selectman of Prospect 
is concerned with Prospect and nothing else. 

I fear to a certain extent that an open endorsement of 
this Bill can to a certain extent exceed to a Pandora's 
box. I find myself in position where I must criticize 
the General Assembly of the State of Connecticut since 
1961 for its lack of attentative understanding to the 
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WEDNESDAY FSCSU\RY 24, 1971 

Mr. Robert,Burns: to the mobile home problem which has pre-
sented to this Assembly year after year after year, 
and the last one being in 1969 in which a feasibility 
study of a mobile home park for the elderly and re-
tired was turned down. A mobile home Study Commission 
said the same thing to this Assembly. 

Mobile homes are going to become a more and more im-
portant fact of housing use and until we do away 
with the adverse and unfair zoning, you are not going 
to cure the problem presented to you with this Bill 
or with any other Bill. 

Now if you look to the language of the Bill, it 
specifies certain things the Rent Commission must 
do, and one of the things that must be done is the 
overhead and expenses involved. 

Now a mobile home park to a certain extent is like 
a town. The difference a town bonds a debt and in-
creases the taxes beyond the retired and the newly 
weds' ability to pay. A mobile home park on the other 
hand, and I think the people in this room that are 
going to testify after me will admit this, the present 
owner has only owned this a short period of time. 
When he bought it, he paid a premium for a licensed 
monopoly created by the State of Connecticut through 
its adverse zoning and has a mortgage payment that 
has to be taken into account, when you figure what 
is the ultimate rent. 

Now I am more than sympathetic and probably understand 
more what was siad than the committee in regard to 
poor maintainence within a park - sloppy hook-ups, 
improper wiring, sewers running out on the ground, 
because I have visited parks throughout the New England 
area and all over the United States. 

I don't think this is the answer. I think the answer 
this committee can do with would be to get the 
General Law Committee to allow mobile home parks to 
be under proper regulations and then enforce them. 
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Mr. Robert Burns: During our Study Commission in '61, '62 
and '63, we found the biggest defficiency at that 
time was improper enforcement of existing ordinances 
and regulations by town officials. 

Now that may sound a little hard, but if you look 
up the report, you will find it is written in that 
language. I do not want to imply that every mobile 
home park be covered by thi<- Rent Control Bill 
simply because one operation is causing an extreme 
adverse affect. 

There are too many towns and the First Selectman 
of Prospect said it, he didn't say we will allow it 
to redesign the park to handle the size product that 
is being sold today, he said oh no, we gonna keep 
you in this nice little tight confine. He is saying 
what is basically said, we don't want mobile homes 
in the State of Connecticut and I feel sorry for 
the people of his town that his enforcement agencies 
cannot do a better job, and I mean that sincerely, 
and I think that this committee will do well to recog-
nize this problem, but to do it on a blanket authori-
ty and allow some town that is not having a problem 
with its mobile home population have two or three 
zealous people get in there who dislike mobile homes 
and create a very very adverse thing. 

Now, one thing that was said here several times which 
I'd like to counter, and that is 'shut up or you'll 
be gone tomorrow morning.' The State of Connecticut 
already have protection from that, it's called 
Summary Process. Just to be able to get a tenant to 
court takes 25 days. Once you go to court, it is 
the judge's discretion as to how soon he will autho-
rize the eviction. Now I personally have had to go 
through this for I am a mobile home dealer and I 
manage two mobile home parks, and we had a judge 
grant a stay of eviction of six months. 
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Mr. Robert Burns: There was nothing we could do about it. 
We could not move the owner until the court order 
was properly executed. So if anybody in any mobile 
home park is threatened this way, they're not gonna 
be out on the street the following morning, but when 
the six months is up, the First Selectman said it 
correctly, there is no other park in the State of 
Connecticut for this man to go because the the 
State through what we call Home Rule, the Enabling 
Act, will not allow the proper development of new 
mobile home parks that will do away with this type of 
operation under sheer competition. Thank you. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you sir. Mr. Walter Shorey. 

Mr. Walter Shorey, Tenant Mobile Home Park: After listening 
to these other gentlemen, probably what I have to 
say won't sound like very much. 

I am in favor of this Bill for I have lived in a 
park for a little over thirteen years. I have seen 
some changes made by Law mostly for park operators. 
The people to my knowledge don't have any mobile 
home laws to really protect the guy that lives in a 
mobile home. 

This Bill here I don't see any cost to the State 
and the way things are going this year, I think 
Meskill might sign it. 

Most every State around the country have mobile home 
laws - Vermont in 1970 signed into mobile home laws 
to cover every town, but most of the people are 
scared to speak out on problems. People have not only 
been told that they would be moved but they would 
hook on to the trailers and park them in the street. 
Now I don't know what kind of a law will keep them 
from doing that. 
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Mr. Walter Shorey: Whenever your rent is due, they can tell 
you to move. If you don't like what the people are doing, 
they will tell you quick enough to move and if you 
don't move at the end of the month, as we have been 
threatened, to hook on to the trailer and pull it out 
on to the street and leave it and from then on, you're 
on your own. 

I don't know what else I can say, but I know I am 
definitely in favor of this Bill if it will help the 
people in anyway in the step in the right direction, 
and I think Rent Control is one of the steps. 

We've had incidents where the sewers have been run-
ning down the back of the trailer, no draimxge, the 
people that had the bravery to call the Town Safety 
or Health Officer telling them that we have a prob-
lem received the answer that they would take care of 
it. He doesn't come over, he just calls up and that's 
the end of it. 

So they went down to 59, they condemned the lot and 
moved the people off,; they go - "don't bother to 
fix the sewer", they move em off; the people have 
no place to go. After they move em off, they fix 
the sewer and put new people on. Because the people 
called the town, this is how they retaliate. 

I don't know what kind of a law will protect them, 
but I don't know of any, and I think that this Bill 
here will be of benefit to us. Thank you. 

Chairman Smith: Mr. Shorey we have a question. 

Representative Joseph S. Coatsworth - 76th District: Mr. Shorey 
you say you have lived in mobile homes for the last 
thirteen years. I am wondering whether or not it has 



15 

HUMAN RIGHTS AND OPPORTUNITIES 

WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24, 1971 

Repo Coatsworth: been your experience during that time that 
such abuses are common rather than isolated cases. 
Would you comment on that. 

Mr. Walter Shorey: You won't have too many cases, but there 
isn't too many people dares to say anything. 

Now I had one incident myself where the park was 
built, well I'm guessing, but it was built before 
I moved there, so I would imagine fifteen to twenty 
years ago, and they put in septic tanks and there 
is a swamp in the back; so they ran the drain from 
the septic tank out through a bank and it just drained 
into the swamp. There is no leaching field or 
nothing. When they started filling the swamp after 
they put in the Connecticut Turnpike, they forced the 
park owners to fill the swamp in. 

Most of it was created by putting in the Connecticut 
Turnpike. After they started filling the swamp in 
they didn't dump any crushed stone by the end of the 
pike, they just dropped the dirt right on it. That 
backed up my tank for one, I'll speak for myself, and 
it backed it up on to my lawn and there was sewage 
actually on our lawn. The grass growed good, but 
it's a terrible thing in the summer because you can't 
open your windows. 

I called the office, so they said they would send in 
a man. They have a regular guy that digs these up, 
but they have to argue with him a few days for if he 
is on a job where he is making more money, he doesn't 
come over. 

It took me exactly... the present owner had a brother 
and he died. It hook me two and a half years to get 
this thing so that they dug a leaching field out in 
front and get rid of this thing. Now I can verify 
that and I got plenty of witnesses, some are in this 
room. 
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Mr. Walter Shorey: This is the situation. Now had i had 
gone to the town, I didn't go, as a matter of a fact 
I went out there with a pick and shovel and dug a 
little bit myself. Had I have gone to the town, I 
probably would not have lived in a trailer fifteen 
years. 

Rep. Coatsworth: Some form of State Regulation of thes 
trailer parks seems to be in order in terms of your 
experience, and in terms of your own opinion on how 
these parks are not run. Is that fair to say? 

Mr..Walter Shorey: I think the State...are you talking about 
Health Rules? 

Rep. Coatsworth: Yes, I'm really curious as to why there seems 
to be no recourse through either existing law or 
agencies either in the town or at the state level to 
help these people who seem to be agreed and definitely 
have grievances against this monopolistic kind of 
situation, and if there is no proper recourse in the 
State of Connecticut right now, for people to find 
solution to these kinds of problems, then I should 
suppose the State would have to take some sort of 
remedial action with regard to the legislation be-
fore us at this time. 

Mr. Walter Shorey: We need the legislation. The State has 
some sort of a rule for parks. I think it's a rule 
I don't think it's any law that I know of, on Sewage 
Control, or placement of septic tanks, but these are 
all superceded by towns. 

I don't think there's anything that's actually controlled 
by the State, like Vermont and some of the other States, 
they would have to put in laws that over-ride anything 
that the town says. They have limits minimum and maxi-
mum and a town can pick in between. I think this is 
what we need in this State is a law set up by the State 
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Mr. Walter Shorey: of Connecticut to control mobile homes 
and I think this would be the ultimate. 

Chairman Smith: We have a question by our Representative 
Klebanoff from the 9th District. 

Rep. Klebanoff: Do you have a Fair Rent Commission in your 
town now? 

Mr. Walter Shorey: I believe we do. I was told that we 
did, I didn't go over and... 

Rep. Klebanoff: Do you know if in many of these areas that 
we are concerned about with the trailer and mobile 
home parks, if they have Fair Rent Commissions? 

Mr. Walter Shorey: That would be hard for me to say. 

Rep. Klebanoff: You see one of the reasons I was asking 
you, I was very much involved in the last election 
with the Fair Rent Commission Bill, and also with 
the Tenants Representative Act and I think the 
thing that I have found very disturbing is that many 
towns have not adopted the Fair Rent Commission, 
whereas we do have a law on the books that creates 
an office of Tenants' Representative in the Circuit 
Court, and it enpowers this person to utilize many 
powers that is disposable including the upgoing of 
rent and mandatory changes. 

If the court sees fit to order certain corrections, 
you know many of which are concerned about, and I've 
heard you express here. The problem is that Bill 
is limited now to tenement houses and I was just won-
dering what your thoughts were about the possibility 
of amending that Bill to have it include mobile homes. 

Mr. Walter Shorey: This is basically waht we want. We want 
something that if a person.. .it's only one law like 
I said before. We need a lot of laws, but it's a 
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Mr. Walter Shorey: step in the right direction. If we don't 
start somewhere, we're never gonna get there. 

After being so long in the dark, and with people more or 
less being brainwashed, when you move into a place you 
are told what you can do and what you can't do, and from 
then on, it's curtains. We need legislation, that's it. 

Rep. Klebanoff: My only concern is, and taerc is another Bill 
before us tonight to make mandatory of course the crea-
tion of Fair Rent Commission and without the passage of 
that Bill, you know I think we have a problem before us 
because otherwise, certain areas that have fair rent 
commissions find the problems could perhaps be considered. 

But in other areas where the towns decide not to accept 
the Fiar Rent Commission, under existing law, we only 
have passed enabling legislation, you know we leave a 
bunch of people perhaps out in the cold, and that's why 
I'm wondering what your thoughts were about making an 
existing law that is already ...it already has some 
teeth and it is mandatory. I mean there is the office 
there and extending perhaps your concept to that Act 
as well. 

Mr. Walter Shorey: I certainly would back that, and I think 
everyone of us would. If they make a law-that's one 
of the bigger problems of making laws and not going 
all the way with them...such as one of the gentlemen 
that talked here said, you aren't gonna make it go part 
way. They've made the law that you're suppose to have 
a Fair Rent Commission, but it doesn't say that every 
town has got to have one. Well we certainly should have 
a law. You say there is a Bill in on that...? 

Rep. Klebanoff: Yes there's another Bill before us tonight. 

Mr. Walter Shorey: What is the number of that? 
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Rep. Klebanoff: Senator Smith's Bill, I believe SB-198. 

Rep. Dice: Mr. Chairman, for the edification of the committee, 
there is another bill that will come before one of the 
committee that is still being written that will create, 
that is, for the licensing of mobile home parks. It 
is still in the legislative draftsman's office. 

Senator Hammer and myself conferred with the Director of 
the Real Estate Commission who is in favor of this ap-
proach to the problem and that is why I brought his files 
files along. He was unable to be here tonight and I might 
indicate that his opinion was, and this is one of the 
reasons why he was in favor of this...that he didn't 
feel that there was sufficient control at the present 
time on a local level or state level to handle the proh-
lem here involved. 

Chairman Smith: Would you give your name again please? 

Rep. Dice: I am Representative Dice of the 83rd District. 

Chairman Smiths Mr. Shorey someone else has a question for 
you . 

Rep. Virginia Connolly - 39th District: I am just curious 
about the conditions that you spoke of in this trailer 
park with affluent running above the surface. Was this 
ever reported to the Director, or if you don't have a 
local Director of Health, was it reported to the State 
Department of Health? 

Mr. "Walter Shorey: I would doubt that it was reported to the 
State. I don't know about the Director, we have a 
Dr. Capanello in town that is the Health Director, and 
like I told you before you could walk in Shoreline 
Trailer Park in Branford today, and I could show you 
two parks...two lots...and they hook up trailers...They'11 
hook a sewer from the one on this side, out on to the 
middle of the lawn, and they'll hook one out this side 
and they have one septic tank. 
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Mr. Shorey: The sewage is on top of the ground. I can show 
you that today the condition is there, and it has been 
reported to the office and reported, and reported and 
reported. Then they'll send somebody down and I talked 
to the Manager today and she told me that just as soon 
as the water dries out, and the Spring comes, it dries 
out and this will go down. 

That's not a very good answer, but these things have 
been reported. Thank you very much. 

Chairman Smith: The next speaker is Mr. James Morris. 

Mr. James Morris: My name is James Morris and I am President 
of the Connecticut Mobile Home Association which is 
a newly formed organization. In fact, we are still in 
process of forming it. 

I've been listening to these speakers which I am not 
| that much of a speaker, but I did hear Mr. Burns say 

that Mr. Dice did his homework just on Prospect. This 
is not just in Prospect that we are talking about. We 
are talking about Connecticut. 

I have letters from all over the State that has come in 
to me since we start to organize, and they all have the 
same problem. 

I got a letter today from New Town, and they have the 
same problem up there. Most of it is sewage and the 
closest of the mobile homes...myself, I am in favor of 
this Bill not just for Prospect. We've been trying to 
get the Rent Commission in Prospect for a year. We went 
before the Council and they said it didn't apply to 
mobile homes. They said it only applied to tenement 
houses and apartments. So they ruled it out. 

WEDNESDAY 
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Mr, James Morris: They said the only way we could get one in 
is if there was an amendment put 46 the original Bill 
that went in in 1969. So this is as I understand is 
why we are here tonight. I am speaking of Bill 5409. 

As far as rents, I've been living in mobile homes for 
well over fifteen years - Pennsylvania, Massachusetts, 
and now I'm in Connecticut. I have been living in 
Connecticut since 1958. 

When I moved into our park, we'll go back to Prospect 
as this seem to be where the homework come from, when 
I moved in there it was $26.00 a month that was in 
1963. Today I am paying $58.00 a month for the same 
piece of ground. I pay $40.00 base rent. Each addi-
tional person is $3.00. I have four children and my 
wife. Each additional auto is $3.00. A washing machine 
is $3.00. Pet Control is $3.00. Pets loose or untied 
is $10.00. Miscellaneous charges is $10.00. Mobile 
home less than 10 ft. wide is $10.00. A pick-up truck 
is $10.00, a boat is $10.00, trailers, motorcycles, 
motor scooters, recreational vehicles, accumulation of 
junks and things, I don't know that is,...so this is 
why we need a rent commission. We need one to start 
some place. 

We have nothing in the State Statutes that protects 
the Mobile home owner. We went to as far as the 
President of the United States. I have the letters 
here in my briefcase... to Senators, Governor - I be-
lieve it was Governor Dempsey and all the way to 
President Nixon. All they do is sympathize with us. 

The way I see it, we need a Rent Commission cause as 
I said, I got a letter from New Town today. It says: 
"I have talked to a few people about co-organizing 
locally, but they seem to be afraid to do so. They tell 
me that they will be asked to move." 
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Mr. James Morris: I know of one party in Nawgatuck that tried 
to form an organization in a park there. He got an 
eviction notice. It cost him quite a bit of money to 
stay. 

Everybody that gets an eviction notice has to go to 
court to stay because these people buy a mobile because 
that is the way they want to live and is what they can 
afford and to go to court cost them a lot a money. 

First thing you come out with is when they come out with 
a rent raise is taxes. In our town in ten years the 
taxes they went up $920.00. The rents went up $25,000.00 
a year. 

Now as was said about the sewage system, I myself, we 
had a lot of problems with sewage system in Prospect. 
I called Dr. Foot myself at his home. He told me that 
he could not overrule the town. He said we can advise 
em, but we cannot overrule and he said besides "I don't 
smell it up here." 

So as I said, I'm not that much of a speaker, but I'm 
still in favor of getting some legislation and this is 
a start for us and I have put in petitions, this is not 
just from Prospect, this is from all over the State. 
There is about 500 names that I handed to the Secretary 
in favor of this Bill plus what the people that we have 
here for it. I thank you. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you sir. Mr. John P. Keane. In the interest 
the many speakers that we have and at the rate we're 
going, as Chairman I cannot restrict the amount of time 
or I do not wish to restrict the amount of time that you 
spend on talking for the Bills. If you have written 
statements, we would like for you to try-to digest what 
you have written down, file your written material with 
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Chairman Smith: the Committee as part of your testimony 
and let's see if we can move the Hearing along. We 
have about twelve speakers already listed and at the 
rate we're going, it will take us four more hours to 
get out of here. 

Mr. John P. Keane: My name is John Keane and I live in 
Branford, Connecticut. I moved my mobile home here 
about two years ago and I came from Iowa. Upon 
arrival in this State, I had great difficulty within a 
radius of where I worked of twenty five miles of finding 
a mobile home court to move my mobile home to. I checked 
around and it took me several days on and off through 
different courts. 

Finally I discovered one, I moved my mobile home to 
that place and upon arrival there, we set up our mobile 
home and found out that the sewage system was defective 
in that there was no proper hook-up that's it, other 
than the one I could contrive myself or find some re-
pairman to come in and make such facilities for me at the 
time. 

Second, I found that I had to do my own wiring to this 
particular facility and I must mention also at this time 
it was only 115 wiring precluding any possibility of 
using any high powered equipment such as a washing machine 
or an electric stove, any other convenience that most 
homes have today, and are being sold regularly in most 
mobile homes. 

This along with the terrain of the individual mobile 
home court, I felt compelled to take, the terrain itself 
being a wooded area behind me contained many dead trees 
which could very easily break off in a heavy wind which 
we have in Connecticut from time to time and destroy 
my mobile home. 
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Mr. John P. Keane: Also the rocid itself, heavily mudded, 
slightly fair now and then, but for the most part, 
very heavily mudded. 

The areas not only in front of my mobile home but in 
front of just about every mobile home in my court 
that would be about twenty six in all, have the same 
conditions. 

Now to augment this impossible situation, the landlord 
from time to time raises our rent and this to all in 
the court would be a time for them to stand up and say 
well, that's about as far as I will go. But due to 
the fact that there is no mobile home rent control, 
then the owner of the mobile home himself, stands with 
his face to the wall - no possibility of taking the 
landlord and himself up to a Fair Rent Control and 
settling the matter as far as what is fair. That I 
think is what we should like to look at in this Bill-
what is 'fair?' The fairness of this situation is that: 
1. There is none. 
2. We have the landlords in the high position and the 
owner of a mobile home which has invested several 
thousands of dollars over a period of time with a bur-
den on his back rather than a home to live in. 

He stands without any resource of his rent control. 
Annually the rent keeps going up. He has no actual, 
lease, he has a 30 day tenancy, he stands with his face 
to the landlord if you want, and if the landlord says 
go he must go. The tenancy is for 30 days. I don't 
think anybody will defend that kind of a set up as 
whether to have to move in 30 days or not. If 30 days 
is the tenancy, in 30 days you move out. 

I have spoken to three lawyers on a particular situation 
that I had concerning a plumbing fixture in the ground 
that had at one time broken. He informed me that it was 
my responsibility to pay this bill for the fixture. 
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Mr, John P. Keaner I said I don't believe it's my turn to pay 
this particular bill and it ensued to send me a notice 
to tell me that my "rent had been raised $10,00 a month 
permanently. This is just one small instance. 

The point is you see, the landlord has heavy leverage 
if not absolute in every case, in every instance 
whether it be a just or unjust complaint. There is no 
arbitration. There is complete control by the landlord. 

There should be control. This is United States of 
America. The people that live in these mobile homes are 
Americans. I think that all of us should consider the 
fact that due process of law has been granted us over 
200 years ago. I think that we should stand up as in-
dividuals, those of us who live in mobile homes and 
those who know of the situation, fellow citizens, and 
say 'let's get this situation under control. Let's 
get it under rent control.' 

Now I'm in favor of the Rent Control Bill. First of 
all for the young married couples. In our particu1-. r 
court if young married couples move in, they have to 
pay first of all a $500.00 entrance fee, they are told 
not to have any children. I"ll bring in individuals 
and have them quote that particular phrase to you from 
the landlord. 

Also, I have spoken to retired veterans who bought a 
mobile home and moved in himself into that particular 
court that I am in right now. He had the contract before 
him for the price of entrance fee of $100.00. The land-
lord right in front of him, crossed it out and made it 
$400.00. 

Retired veteran or whatever you are, you pay this amount. 
Also he has received every rent increase along with 
everyone else in the mobile home court regardless of his 
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Mr. John P. Keane: financial oonditions. So I say from every 
point of view, this particular situation is unjust and 
unfair to all that view it. I think that all that view 
it should stand back and look - is this America today? 
Sure we have plenty of unjustices, this is one we can 
really work on. 

I am in favor of this Bill that is up to control the 
rent in this particular court. Thank you very much. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you sir. For those of you who have just 
come in we h w e a speakers list if you would like to 
come up and sign this list. 

In addition now we have Bills that we are hearing this 
evening in printed form on the tables left and right. 

Mr. Elwood Robinson, 525 East Main St., Branford - HB-5409: 
I am a mobile home owner for five years and belong to 
the Connecticut Mobile Home Association. The goals of 
our association are simple - to have a better image of 
mobile home owners, to improve conditions in our parks. 

The Association and I would like to say that we feel we 
are being very reasonable. On this occasion we are 
asking that we be able to get fair rent legislation 
passed to include mobile homes. 

We would also like an opportunity to have more and bet-
ter parks for our mobile homes at reasonable rent rates. 

If the land rent keeps going up, it will not be economical 
living in a mobile home. I am in favor of Bill #5409. 
Thank you. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you very much sir. Our next speaker is 
Mr. C. Michael Budlong. 
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Mr. Daniel Fletcher: It is in these areas that we are more likely 
to have blighted areas, arid unfortunately this seems to 
lead to the exploitation of many of the lower income and 
moderate income people. We support that Bill. 

I might say parenthetically that the Commission on 
Human Rights and Opportunities worked diligently in 
the 1969 General Assembly to get the permissive legis-
lation that we now have on the books. It was Public Act 274 
if it is a Fair Rent Commission. 

We also support in principle SB-334 an act regulating 
negotiations between landlords and tenants. It is these 
kinds of matters that eventually wind up over here before 
you gentlemen and ladies as being brought to you through 
their imploring of passage of H3-5409. We believe if we 
get the kind of regulation whereby there is a commission 
that can mediate between landlord and tenant, we'll 
eliminate many of the problems. 

f We urge your support and we thank you for being able 
to appear you. Thank you very much. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you. The next speaker will be 
Mr. William Morton. 

Mr. William Morton: Mr. Chairman, my name is William E. Morton 
from Bramford and I live at Shoreline Trailer Park. 

I would like to state to all these people here that 
do not have a trailer home, it is hell living there. 
I'll tell you some of the examples we go through: 

I had a very expensive collie when I moved into this 
trailer park. They told me it would be $10 a month 
for this dog which was fine 'cause we wanted the dog. 
Then the park manager came over and said the dog can't 
bark. Well God knows, how do you stop a dog from 
barking? And she said I would have to get rid of this 
dog because people were complaining. 
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Mr. William Morton: When I went around, there was no one com-
plaining. When we moved into this trailer park, this 
entrance fee was $300.90 which was hard to get up. 
Well when they moved us in there, there was sewage all 
over this little piece of land that they gave us. 

She said she would have somebody over to take care of 
this, but seeing that we had to have a place to live, 
you know, this was the conditions under which we moved 
in. Well, this went on for two months. It took me to 
run a truck three loads to take out the garbage and the 
filth that was in this trailer park, this little lot, 
and any person knows that when you have children, that 
play, and there were three children next door to me 
that played in this garbage. You know, you begin to 
wonder...and there's so many things that has happened in 
this trailer park. 

You can't have...my brother-in-law he just came back from 
Vietnam, he had a bike and came over to see us, we had 
just gotten married and we were having a baby. He came 
over and he didn't know anything about rules, well she 
came flying out of that trailer and told him to get out 
of there which he did. It was an old bike and it broke 
down so he walked it back to our trailer park, she ran 
over again and said "What' s that bike doing here?" I 
told her it broke down. She said "I don't give a damn, 
you get it outta here." So the kid had to...I would say 
eleven o'clock at n:*ght he finally got a chain for this 
bike and it woke up everybody trying to fix it of course, 
but she didn't care, you know, it wasn't her business. 

So anyway we had the baby and we had a noisy neighbor 
which she told us would happen anyway. I called her 
and I said "could you at least tell them to knock off 
the noises, it's 1:30 in the morning, the baby is 
sleeping". She said, "well that's none of our business." 
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Mr. V.'illiam Morton: "Call the police." Now these people are 
running this park, you 'know, and.. .Christinas Eve we had 
a lot of people over at our house. As you all know a 
lot of people do come to your house around Christmas Eve, 
well the box that connects to our trailer burnt up. 
Our cord was burning. Well, I'm not an electrician so 
I called... they said "What the hell do you want us to 
do, it's too late at night." That's just the way they 
said it. So we finally had to hook direct wires which 
I don't know anything about and they didn't care so 
next day I went them and they said they would have some-
body take care of this, well, the wires are still like 
they were. Anybody can grab them and people are afraid 
to talk up, I don't know why - I may find myself in the 
streets tomorrow, but it has to be done, this Bill has 
to pass 'cause these landlords and these people that tney 
put into these parks, God knows they can do anything 
they want with you, and as a young guy and trying to 
save some money, I can't do it because the rent keeps 
going up and there' s nothing being done and we need 
some action on it. Thank you very much. 

hairman Smith: Thank you. Our next speaker.. .give your name 
please and the Bill and number on which you are speaking, 
and whether you are for or against the Bill. 

r. Ralph W. Gagliotti: Mr. Chairman my name is Ralph Gagliotti 
and I am definitely for Bill 5409. 

I'm one of the newly weds here that people have been 
talking about. I came into my park in April of last 
year and it is sheer coincidence the manner in which 
I had to enter this park, 

A woman, her husband and two kids were in the trailer 
before I got there. This was a used home, we were con-
sidering buying a new home, but we went through the 
rigamarole of finding out that I did not have any place 
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Mr. Ralph Gagliotti: to put it after I did huy it. When it 
came time to actually close the deal for my mobile 
home, which is of course in the thousands of dollars, 
this couple that was in there, they had mis-phrased the 
advertisement more or less in the newspaper, and it was 
almost let to believe that she was selling the lot with 
the trailer. Well, the management came right down on 
her and they made her retain this trailer for an extra 
three months whether she was there or not. 

It happened that she had to move out, the home that she 
was moving into was ready. So for three months, the 
trailer went empty. I stood on one end wanting to buy 
and she stood on the other holding and not being able 
to sell. 

Well, it finally came down to me sitting down with the 
owner of the park Mr. O'eonnoll of Bramford, Stony Creek 
itself, and Mr. O'Connoll happens to be the City Comp-
troller for New Haven. This just happened to be his 
sideline. I guess his mother owned it before and I've 
heard that she was very good with the park. But this 
is one incident... the rent went up, automatically we 
were given notice a month before, then $15.00. The 
$35.00 a month wasn't bad considering the low water 
pressure. You wouldn't believe the sediment that set-
tles in the hot water heater. They give you five years 
for the life of the heater, jrou're lucky to make it. 

I mean it is well water...some weekend we have gone 
away and we come back...the sinks are almost blue. 
I don't know what they are adding to the water. I 
ive no idea, I don't know if the water has ever been 

tested. This I would like to look into myself. But 
they come around with the rent raise, but you don't 
see any improvements going on. 

The wiring is terrible. The boxes outside are laid to 
the weather. Nobody else cares about closing them 
up except yourself. 
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Mr. Ralph Gagliotti: There aren't any roads except for one 
coming in that ends abruptly in front of the mailbox 
that you can speak of. The rest of the place is mud. 

I consider myself kinda lucky. I've got a pretty good 
lot over there. I've got quite a bit of room and can 
do mostly just about anything I want to. There is no 
really extra charge for any animals - I do own two dogs, 
and I am lucky enough I guess I could say, to have a 
washer and dryer in ray place, and I am really for the 
Bill. I'd like to see something be done about this. 
Thank you very much. 

Chairman Smith: Thank you sir. The next speaker is 
Mr. Stephen Darley. 

Mr. Stephen Darley: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, 
my name is Stephen Darley. I am an attorney with 
New Haven Legal Assistance Association specializing 
in Housing Law. 

I am here to speak on behalf of the Fair Haven Neigh-
borhood Corporation in support of SB-334 - an Act 
regulating negotiation between landlord and the tenant. 

We believe that this is a landmark legislation in the 
rights of tenants to organize into unions to improve 
the housing conditions. In the same way that Labor 
was able to organize in the '30's to improve working 
conditions, and I think the situations are very similar. 

We support the Bill wholeheartedly. We do however feel 
that there are some changes that we would like to see 
added before it is passed as a Law. 

The first change that we suggest is that the membership 
of this proposed Landlord/Tenant Relations Commission be 
expanded from three members to nine members. The reason 
we suggest this is this. It appears to us that there 



44 

HUMAN RIGHTS AND OPPORTUNITIES 

WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 24, 1971 

Chairman Frazierr Thank you. The next in line is 
Attorney Sidney Schulmanr 

Att. Sidney Schulman:. Thank you very much. Ladies and gentlemen 
of the Committee, my name is Sidney T. Schulman. I am 
Director of Neighborhood Legal Services of Hartford, 
Connecticut. 

I'm here both in my capacity as Director of the program 
and also representing the several groups - neighborhood 
groups in the city of Hartford Tenant Organizations, 
the Spanish Action Coalition and other Puerto Rican 
organiziitions in the city of Hartford whom we represent. 

I would like to speak in favor of Bills 334, 198, 488 
and Bill 5409. I have not said that I am speaking in 
favor of Bill 6205 which is the Control Rents Paid By 
the Elderly. I am in favor of the concept except for 
fact incident 30, I must agree with the gentlemen who 
spoke before in that as Fair Rent Commissions now, 
they very definitely have the power to accept complaints 
from all citizens including elderly and therefore as 
one who hates to see a surplus language that can be 
avoided in Bills, I don't think the Bill is necessary. 
But as I said, I am certainly in favor of the concept. 

The mobile home Bill, I do feel this should cover 
mobile homes and as a matter of fact, one of my reccomen-
dations to one of the other Bills that I will speak on 
is to add specifically all mobile homes to that Bill. 
However, I have not had a great deal of contact with 
tenants of mobile homes since our program basically 
represents people who are poor and live in the city of 
Hartford. Obviously there are no mobile homes in Hart-
ford that I know of, and so I have not had great contact 
with it. But it is a residence, and as a residence, it 
should certainly be subject to all the laws of the State 
which apply to other residences. 
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Att. Sidney Schulmanr Now firstly, I would like to talk on 
Bill 198 which is the Act creating mandatory fair rent 
commission for certain towns. 

Gentleman spoke when I came in, unfortunately I came in 
a little late, about the experiences of towns in the 
State with Fair Rent Commissions. Well I am able to en-
lighten the Committee as to a couple of those experiences, 

As I discuss them, you will see how critically important 
it is for Bill 198 to be passed. 

Firstly, Bill 198 will make it mandatory for all towns 
or cities over 25,000 to have a Fair Rent Commission, 
and it would be permissive for towns under 25,000 to 
have a Fair Rent Commission. To be honest, I would 
lower if I were to make a recommendation, to lower the 
25,000 figure to perhaps 10,000. I would require that 
it be mandatory for all towns over a population of 
either 10 or 15,000. 

I bring to mind the town of Willimantic. This town 
has bad many problems and no matter which side you're 
on or whom you favor in those towns, the fact is they 
have problems, some serious problems. 

The town of Willimantic has a large amount of slum 
housing as 1 understand it, and they do have problems 
with high rents. Noxv, as I understand it, Willimantic 
has approximately 15 to 20,000 in population and does 
not have the Fair Rent Commission. I do believe that 
it should be mandatory for a town of that size. 

Nov as far as the Hartford experience, before I go on 
to the other two Bills...to show you what can happen 
to a town, or to a city even though a Fair Rent Com-
mission was passed, let me relate to you what happened 
in Hartford. 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: Hartford passed the Fair Rent Com-
mission Ordinance last December, now I don't mean 
two months ago, I mean a year ago - December 1969 they 
passed the Fair Rent Commission. I felt that there was 
some serious flaws in it and I submitted to one of the 
Councilrnen who submitted it to the Council, recommended 
changes in the Fair Rent Commission and I was told, 
"hold off, let's see how the Commission works as drafted, 
because we're gonna get it going and if it is not working 
well, if some of these flaws that you say are in it 
exist, this will become known in 60 days, then we'll 
change it." I said well, alright, I'm gonna take you 
at your word, I'm gonna take you in good faith which 
was the first mistake I made. 

The city of Hartford under its present Ordinance, gives 
the power to the Commission to do all the things that 
the State says. Now I said, how are part time rather 
temporary commissioners in the city of Hartford going 
to take the time to hold hearings, do investigations, 
all the things required under the Act. Now you know 
and I know that they're simply not going to do it. 
They can't do it, they have to earn a living for their 
families. So I suggested that the functions be delegated 
to a staff and I think this is reasonable and the city 
agreed except that the Corporation Council of the city 
came up with the legal ruling that they must hold the 
hearings themselves - the commissioners themselves. 

I suggested that they be delegated to Hearings Officers 
who after calling the Hearings would make a report to 
the Commission which the Commission in the exercise 
of its duties...its judicial function could accept or 
not accept. And if the Commission wanted, certainly 
it had the power to call the parties before it. 

This was rejected. They said absolutely not. The 
Commissioners themselves must hold the Hearings. 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: Alright, let's see what happened: 
Between April 1 which is the fiscal year for Hartford, 
and I believe some time in the middle of August, various 
appointments were made. It turned out some of the 
appointments were not legal because the people appointed 
were State employees and so forth; but finally by 
August of 1970, there was a Fair Rent Commission in the 
city of Hartford, and it had a chairman. They met and 
elected a chairman, now they're in business. 

Now according to the Corporation Council's decision, 
his opinion, and according to the Ordinance that they 
were then to begin to function. What happened? They 
said, "well, there is a challenge to the Stamford 
Ordinance so we don't want to start anything if the 
Stamford Ordinance is gonna be ruled unconstitutional." 

Well, this was a fairly logical position except that 
in September of 1970, the Stamford appeal was withdrawn 
and the Stamford Commission was functioning. What 
happened to the Hartford Commission? Hartford Commis-
sion - nothing. They did not function in September, 
did not function in October, did not function in 
November, did not function in December. Finally in 
late December, 23 complaints that had been on a form -
a complaint form which listed all the information neces-' 
sarv were presented to an urban semester student who 
was working under the auspices of our program ( he was 
Larry Humphrey from Trinity College) and he submitted 
23 complaints. Twenty of the complaints had rents up 
to $240 a month for five room slum housing, with rats, 
roaches, ceilings falling in and everything else. 
Twenty two hundred and forty dollars a month? Now 
is there anything more excessive in your eyes? This 
was submitted Christmas Eve. What happened? 

Approximately January 13, I got a letter from the Direc-
of Housing in Hartford saying "We acknowledge receipt 
of your complaints. We just accepted a complaint form 
for the Commission which is much...requires much more 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: information. We sent it to the printers 
and you'll be hearing from us." You see, now this was 
very nice and I was ready to bring an action then be-
cause according to the law which I didn't pass, the 
city council in Hartford passed, required, required to 
take certain action. 

I said okay, fine. I will accept the Corporation Coun-
cil's opinion - go out, investigate, hold Hearings. 
What happened? Nothing...unfortunately I got ill and I 
didn't bring the action. Now it's February 24 nothing' 
has happened. There has heen no complaint forms sent 
to these people. There's been no action. They are still 
paying $55 a week without utilities. Nothing has hap-
pened . 

So you see that it is true that passing a Fair Rent Com-
mission Statute does not in and of itself remedy the 
situation, but it's a good statute and I suggest that 
the Act making it mandatory for certain...for towns is 
necessary and I'll tell you why - because it is the in-
tention of these people, these 23 people who have come 
to us seeking help and they have said "Make the city 
Commission do what the law, what their law that they have 
made said they would do, and this is what we hope to do. 

But I might suggest to you for further change to the 
Fair Rent Commission Ordinance that specifically by 
State Statute that the towns that enact the Fair Rent 
Commission Ordinance be permitted to delegate the func-
tion of hearing the cases - two Hearings Officers paid 
fulltime Officers in the respective cities. If the 
Commissioners want to retain that office to themselve, 
fine. 

I think by Statute it will be perfectly logical and 
reasonable to have Hearings Officers take the information 
note the demeanour of the witnesses and permit them to 
file report with the Commission. 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: This may order another hearing and hear 
the witnesses themselves. 3ut nobody can convince me 
that the cities of any size that temporary unpaid, many 
times politically appointed commissioners are going to 
sit in judgement as a panel day after day and night af-
ter night...you know how long it's gonna take them to 
hear these 23 complaints? I'm gonna enjoy that. 

Now this is one recommendation I have for the amend-
ments to the Fair Rents Statute. I would also suggest 
respectfully, that the Statute set forth...now in 
Hartford there was problem with this, but it may be 
overcome. But that it try to set forth more specifically 
the representation of the commission that is necessary. 

As I understand it in other towns where they have passed 
it, there has been real serious problem where there has 
been equal and fair representation of all the parties 
involved on the Commission. 

Nov; I would like to turn my attention for the moment 
to Bill 483 concerning Security Deposits on real proper-
ty. I can tell you that many questions...without any 
question at all that one of the most critical problems 
that we have in our program time and time again, repeated 
problems, is the problem of the security deposit and 
I refer you to an esteemed authority namely 'Dear George' 
in the Hartford Times, wherein tonight she pled with 
the General Assembly or somebody to make more clear the 
law on security deposits and I wholeheartedly agree. 
I can't tell you the number of times landlords have some-
times rightfully sometimes wrongfully come up with all 
kinds of reasons why a security deposit can't be given 
back. We've had to sue them, we've had to clog up the 
courts with a small Claims Court of regular dockets with 
cases involving security deposits. It is absolutely 
ridiculous. 

Believe it or not, three years ago a woman's children 
were killed, they were murdered in her apartment. 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: This landlord in withholding the security 
deposit, charged her for cleaning her children's blood 
from off the walls and floor. 

Now I obviously don't mean to indicate that this is the 
rule, but it just shows you the extreme which the present 
law can bring you. 

I do have two recommendations for Bill 488. Number one, 
I think it is very good as far as it goes in setting 
down the procedures for the return of security deposits. 
I do feci that it would be much more affective if there 
were provisions setting forth the things which a land-
lord may claim as covered by...may claim to retain part 
of the security deposit.. .for instance he nuiy not claim 
the security deposit if he has to quote 'clean the 
apartment', which is the most standard thing used. He 
may not claim if he has to paint the apartment, perhaps 
unless it has been painted within the year, and then 
if he goes into parts that have to be painted, then maybe. 

He may not claim for normal deterioration and wear and 
tear. He of course may claim for major damages. Now 
I suggest that there be some kind of a...and I know this 
can be abused but it just flew off the top of my head, 
some kinda monetary limit for damages that he is talking 
about. 

If he is talking about damages that run around $5, $10 
to fix no, I don't think that he ought to be able to 
take that off the security deposit. If he is talking 
about major damages, I don't know, that would cost him 
at least $25 to $50 on up to fix, yes, then let him 
take it off the security deposit. 

I've seen landlords claim...you know when somebody hangs 
a picture on the wall and because they didn't take a 
toothpick and get some plaster you know and that holds 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: to cover it, and it still looks lousy 
anyway, the landlord is going to claim $5 to fix that 
hole. If you hang as many pictures in your house as 
I do in mine, I'd be bankrupt if I tried to pay him 
for fixing those holes. So I suggest that there be 
a monetary limit set for damages over a certain amount 
and under a certain amount. 

My second recommendation to that Statute is this: 
I suggest respectfully that if as pursuant to Section 4 
the landlord makes a claim that to protect him, and 
to protect the tenant, that if he makes a claim, if he 
receives a reply back from the tenant which is covered 
in the second sentence, ^"the tenants shall within 
30 days of receipt of such notice, request the return 
of the deposit); if the tenant replies and says he didn't 
do that damage or raises an objection, then let there 
be a provision in here that the landlord shall leave' 
the money in the escrow account until he obtains judge-
ment against the tenant. If the tenant is going to 
argue about it, he's gonna know who the tenant is, and 
he's not gonna write from some address that's unknown. 
The tenant's gonna come and say give me my money, the 
landlord is gonna say okay, where do I send it? He's 
gonna know where that tenant is. If he doesn't know 
where the tenant is, as in the other provisions, great I 
let him keep the money. But if he notifies the tenant 
and the tenant says that he objects, let him leave the 
money in the escrow account for both their protection. 
By due process of law it can be settled in small Claims 
Court without a great deal of litigation. 

In going to small Claims Court, he can sue the tenant 
for the damage that he is claiming, and if he wins it, 
he's got all the money there so he can collect it and 
and there's no problem. They do it now anyway. If the 
damage exceeds the security, they go into court ;uid 
they sue. 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: The problem now is when the landlord 
unreasonably withholds the security deposit, it's the 
tenant who has the burden to go into court, perhaps 
hire a lawyer and say "I didn't do it.". 

Now if the landlord hires a lawyer who is going to take 
a piece of the recovery as his fee, in many cases...so 
it is much easier for the landlord simply to go into 
court when ho has the money right in his pocket in the 
escrow accoun t and to sue the tenant...rmall Claims 
Court...get his judgement and he's all set. 

That's my comment as to Bill 488 and I hope I'm not 
taking too long, but I do have a couple of comments 
as to >i11 334. 

I'm wholeheartedly in favor of 3111 334 and I again 
of course call your attention to the first sentence 
which I won't bother reading, which I feel does set 
forth very ably all the purposes of such a Bill. 

I would like to endorse my brother counsel's comments 
as to the changes he would like to see in Bill 334 with 
one exception. In Section 3 where it talks about how 
many Bank Commissioners there should be, and who they 
should be, well likewise, I really don't care if they 
are three or nine. Ah 1 but I don't think that the 
destination in picking the Commissioner should be 
landlord and tenants, and I again take you to the far 
reaching consequences of appointing us a tentative 
representative the President of G. Fox and Company 
who perhaps may be a tenant of the owner of a building 
like major department stores, and I am sure that you 
can see the illogical consequences... that maybe could 
be held in reverse too, so I would like to see some 
other kind of breakdown. 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: I don't know what it should be, or 
perhaps I'm too illogical to say that certain number 
of the Commissioners should come from what, for want 
of a better explanation 'low and middle income families.' 

I won't belabor that point. I think that there is a 
better way...there must be a better way to pick it. 
We had the same problem in Hartford on the Rent Com-
mission and my suggestion was that it be solved by 
specifying that say perhaps, one member from the greater 
Hartford Board of Realtors which it would be a land-
lord, and in fact a landlord representative. It is a 
recognized tenant association, of course plus it is 
easier to do in the city, that perhaps one member be 
from that Tenant Association or something on that line. 

Now again I feel that a Bill like this, without going 
into all the things about how it can be likened to 
unions... very frankly, a great portion of our business 
have to do with landlords and tenant relations. A 
great portion of our court business has to do with 
landlord/tenant relations. 

The State Welfare Department has set up a special body 
to deal with landlord/tenant relations. I submit to 
you again that it would go a long way toward easing 
the clog in the courts and small clients courts and 
in certain courts, it would ameliorate many fights 
and arguments and things that presently exists between 
landlords and tenants. 

I submit that you probably would not have as many rent 
strikes as there are now. You would stop the abhorent 
practice of lock-outs and to make a point rather than 
laboring all the things that I have down here...I sug-
gest, by the way, that landlords' cost could be re-
duced by having a Commission like this to go to, to 
re9blve matters rather than having to fight it out 
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A.tt. Sidney Schulman: with their tenants in the back of 
the hallway of their apartments. 

I have a tenant whose landlord, although her rent is 
paid through February 28, he says that if she isn't 
out by March 1st, he's gonna lock her out, and if she 
tries to go in, he's gonna call the police and have 
her arrested for breaking and entering. He has also 
said that she can't have people visit her after 5:00 
at night. He has also said that if he want to go in 
there when she is there, he will go in there and if 
she doesn't let him in, he's gonna break the door 
down. 

Alright, what are we going to do with a think like 
this? I don't know. I suggest that if there is a 
Commission... if there is a body whereby due process 
of law...these matters can be resolved that it can 
be clearly and once and for all stated to landlords 
for instnace, that you simply can't lock out people 
without...you simply must take the legal summary pro-
cess route to evict them. Then I suggest to you that 
it will go a long way, a long, long way towards the 
resolving of housing problems in the city. 

The only suggestion I make to this Act... I don't know... 
is that in my quick perusal of the Act...of right to 
counsel... and I suggest that there should be a provi-
sion in the Act giving landlords and tenants right to 
counsel. I don't necessarily say that there must be 
counsel, namely attorneys, but you're right, there is 
presidence in Welfare favoring law, in Motor Vehicle 
Law, as a matter of fact, there is a State Statute 
on as to welfare law in our practice book that attor-
neys use to outline rules for the small claims court 
wherein people may be represented not only by lawyers 
but by authorized representatives, and I suggest that 
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Att. Sidney Schulmanr that be made plural since there may 
be two, you know, in some cases.. .because again there 
are various provisions in this Bill for things that 
tenant have to do to claim an unfair housing practice 
on behalf of the landlord. 

Well you know, let's be practical. Let's face the fact 
of the matter which is that the substantial number of 
tenant, especially people who are poor are simply not 
going to start sitting down writing out long complaints 
and all kinds of pleadings and stuff like that. They 
are going to need help. 

Landlords are going to have to help. Whether the 
counsel appears with them at the hearing or not, they 
are going to go to their lawyer and their lawyer is 
going to help, so I do suggest that there be a provision 
for a right to counsel with them. 

That would terminate my comments. I would urge your 
favorhble consideration of these Bills. I apologize 
if I have been long-winded, and I would request if you 
have any questions I would be happy to answer them. 
Thank you very much. 

Chairman Frazier: I have listened to you very attentively and 
I think some of your ideas should be included in some 
of the Bills, however, I know something you spoke on 
concerning Bill 43G in so far as the landlord taking 
the tenant to court and sueing them. My question sir, 
is this - if the amount of deposit does...isn't enough 
or ' Z the amount of damages exceeds the amount of the 
deposit, and if the tenant is on any form of welfard, 
what then? 

Att. Sidney Schulman: Well, very simply, as you may know, and 
from my experience I can tell you...when a landlord take 
a tenant to court for damages, let's even forget the 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: the security deposit problem, and 
judgement is obtained against the tenant for let's say 
$200; the fact of the matter is, as an attorney of any 
tenant, especially tenants on A.B.C. or people that we 
call working poor, if they can...with a hundred dollars 
maybe 50si on the dollar, most lawyers would be elated 
to settle the case for that in a lump sum. 

Now here you have a case. I have known of very few 
security deposits that have every been more than $250, 
so you basically have cases most of the time which can 
be in small claims court and can get a very quick 
hearing. 

The landlord is permitted of course, to sue for any-
thing he wanted to and if there is excessive damages, 
he can get a judgement on that now. Now let's assume 
he sues for $400, and I really haven't seen too many 
cases where there have been suits above that, most of 
them are below that...alright, you have a case here 
where the landlord, if he wins his suit, granted he may 
not bo able to get the other $150, but he's got $250 
more than 50;'o cold hard cash, and not only that, he 
doesn't have to make any deal with the tenant to accept 
it as settlement in full...he's got the $250. He can 
take it and still go after the other $150, and if he's 
got that much damage, then my experiences have been in 
that most landlords are going to sue irrespective of 
the fact that the person is on A.D.C. Have I answered 
your. . . 

Chairman Frazier: My point is...what recourse does the land-
lord have if he wins and his damages exceed the deposit, 
and the person is on welfare? 

Att. Sidney Schulman: He certainly...he has all the damages 
that are now available to him by law. 
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Att. Sidney Schulman: The advantage of my proposal,is that 
he has got $250 sitting in the bank. Let's assume 
that that's the deposit for the moment. He's got 
$250 sitting in this escrow account. "While the action 
is pending, this $250 is accruing interest, however 
small...so he has money right in hand. 

Now there's only two other things if that provision 
is not put in here, that might happen. What happens 
now if the landlord takes the money and uses it for his 
own purposes, and if in fact he is wrong, then it is 
totally on the tenants' shoulders to try to get it. 

In all fairness, all we're saying is that before he 
is permitted to take it and use it, that he prove he 
has a right to it, and that he do it by the means that 
he uses ROW, namely, going to court and saying "they 
damaged ray property." He would have the same recourses 
for any excess that he uses now that has now... I don't 
personally think it's legal, and that's another battle 
to be fought. 

I've had a tenant take an A.D.C. check and put it in 
a checking account and have a landlord come in and 
"baff" check that check, and the person says..."but I c 
can't get anything else from him, and now I don't 
have any food for my family for two weeks", and he 
says "well, that's the way it goes',' and so that family 
went to the Salvation Army for two weeks. 

Chairman Frazier: Alright, now there's just one more ques-
tion. In Bill 198 you mentioned that you would re-
duce the limitations of 25,000. Now it's been ray 
experience that any town with 25,000 or less that don't 
even have . . . 

Att. Sidney Schulman: Have you been to Willimantic recently? 
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Att. Sidney Schulmanr Is it less than 25,000? 

Chairman Frazier: I believe it is. 

Att. Sidney Schulman: It is. If you would like Frazier, in 
fact I can give you a few streets to walk around in 
Willimantic that I think will amply describe the point. 

But it is true, as a matter of fact, I can name some 
other towns that have similar problems especially some 
of those so called factory towns. Okay? Thank you sir. 

Chairman Frazier: Thank you very much. We've spoken to the 
last person coming up to testify so I'm gonna close the 
Hearing. Thank you. 
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